1.

COUNCIL WORK SESSION
CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
JULY 17,2018 AT 9:00 AM
696 SKY VALLEY WAY (OLD LODGE)

AGENDA

Call to Order

2. Adoption of Agenda

NEW BUSINESS

3.

7.

2017 Audit Report- Joely Mixon

Review Quotes- Scenic Overlook Fencing

Review Right of Way Tree Trimming Services 2018
Review Bucket Truck Bids

Brunch Bill Referendum - SB17

OTHER BUSINESS

8.

Adjournment
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
Of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major tund, and the remaining fund information of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia (the “City”)
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic tfinancial statements as listed in the table of contents

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
auditin accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we plan and pertorm the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present tairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the remaining fund information of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia as of December 31, 2017, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of Changes
in the City's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios on page 33, the Schedule of City Contributions on page
34, and the notes to the required supplementary information on pages 35-36, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the intormation and comparing the information tor
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit uf the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Management has chosen to omit Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not atfected by this missing information

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of Sky Valley, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds (as required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated 48-8-121)
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements

The Schedule of Expenditures of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the undcrlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opinion, the
Schedule of Expenditures of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2018 on
our consideration of City of Sky Valley, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

N dow TN ido Q’I&W ok Hew CAAI
Mixon, Mixon, firown & Tench, CPAs
Cornelia, Georgia
june 29, 2018
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,619,850 $ 963,445 $ 2,583,295
Receivables, net

Accounts . 29,934 29,934

Taxes 76,631 - 76,631
Internal Balances
Capital Assets:

Land, Improvements, and Construction in Progress 251,739 2,222 253,961

Other Capital Assets, net of Depreciation 1,303,422 3,136,397 4,439,819
Total Assets 3,251,642 4,131,998 7,383,640
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Pension Related Items o 18,244 5,450 23,694
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,269,886 4,137,448 7,407 334

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 20,572 20,572
Accrued Liabilities -
Uncarned Property Tax Revenue 943,808 943,808
Customer Deposits Payable 12,497 12,497
Compensated Absences:

Due Within One Year 8,335 2,229 10,564

Due Beyond One Year 3,941 303 4,244
Capital Leases:

Due Within One Year

Due Beyond One Year
Notes Payable:

Due Within One Year ; 100,694 100,694

Due Beyond One Year - 1,481,601 1,481,601
Net Pension Liability, Due Beyond One Year 113,328 33,851 147.179
Total Liabilities 1,089,984 1.631.175 2,721,159
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Related ltems 17.190 5.136 22,326
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 1107174 1,636,311 2743485

NET POSITION
Net Invested in Capital Assets 1,555,161 1,556,324 3,111,485
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 3,448 3,448
Unrestricted Net Position 604,103 944,813 1,548,916
Total Net Position $ 2,162,712 $ 2,501,137 $ 4,663,849

The accompunying notes are un itegral part of these financial statements
1
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SPLOST
Capital Nonmajor Total
Projects Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Fund ~ Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,616,339 $ 3.448 3 63 $ 1.619,850
Receivables, net 76,631 76,631
Due From Other Funds :
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,692970 ] 3,448 $ 63 $ 1,696,481
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 20,572 $ $ 3 20572
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Property Tax Revenue 943,808 943,808
TOTAL LIABILITIES 964,380 964,380
FUND BALANCES
Non-Spendable
Restricted for Capital Projects 3,448 3.448
Assigned to:

Hotel/Matel 63 63
Unassigned Reported in:

General Fund 724,590 728,590
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 728,590 3,448 63 732,101
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,692970 3 3,448 $ 63
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assels used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and
therefore, are not reported in the funds 1,555,161
l.ong-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and there(ore,
are not reported in the funds:
Compensated Absences (12,276}
Net Pension Liability (113,328)
The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the
City's pension plan are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Deferred Outflows of Resources 18,244
Deferred inflows of Resources 17,190
Net Position of Governmental Activities 3 2,162,712

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2017

Major Governmental Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stutements
f




CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Major Governmental Funds

SPLOST Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Projects Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property § 997170 $ $ $ 997.170
lutangible and Transter 13.259 13,259
Franchise 54,939 54,939
Reer and Wine 1,110 1110
Insurance Premums 17,944 17,944
Business Taxes 950 950
Hotel/Motel Taxes 17.287 17,287
Licenses and Permits 11,685 11,685
Intergavernmental 39,108 39,108
Charges for Services 9,539 9,539
Fines and Forteitures 6,378 6,378
Investment Earnings 1,504 3 8 1,515
Miscellaneous 30,900 o 30,900
TOTAL REVENUES 1,184.486 3 17,295 1,201,784
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 261,803 261,803
Police and Courts 308,998 308,998
Fire 61,225 61,225
Public Works/Streets 559,580 559,580
Parks 158,787 158,787
I'romotions & lourism 24976 6,915 31,891
Economic Development 48,096 48,096
Housing & Development 34.639 33.639
Nebt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,457,104 6,915 1 464,019
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (272,618) 3 10.380 B (262,235)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Proceeds From Sale of Asscts
Transters In 10,372 10,372
Translers Out ; (10,372) (10,372)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES 10,372 (10,372) o
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (262,246) 3 8 (262,235)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 990,836 N 3,445 - 55 994,336
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 728,590 $ 3,448 $ 63 3 732,101

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (262,235)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement ot Activities are different
because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of

Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays

($537,185) exceeded depreciation ($81,383) in the current period. 455,802

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do no provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenue in the funds 5167

In the Statement of Activities, vperating expenses are measured by the amounts incurred
during the year. However, compensated absences arc included in the governmental funds
only to the extent that they require the expenditure of current financial resources 810

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the

Statement ol Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned, net of employee contributions

is reported as pension expense. This is the amount by which cost of benefits carned, net

of employee contributions ($23,522) exceeded pension contributions ($22,221) (1,301)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 198,243

The accompanying notes ure an integral part of these financial statements.
8



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Budget
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 984,50 3 996,250 $ 997,170 $ 920
Intangible and Transfer 7,800 12,200 13,259 1,059
Franchise 55,000 55,000 54,939 (61)
Beer and Wine 1.200 1,200 1,110 (90)
Insurance Premium 15,000 17,900 17,944 44
Business Taxes 600 1,000 950 (50)
Licenses and Permits 15,200 10,300 11,685 1,385
Intergovernmental 25,000 17,950 39,108 21,158
Charges for Services 10,600 9,400 9,539 139
Fines and Forfeitures 8,000 4,900 6,378 1,478
Investment Earnings 1,500 1,500 1,504 4
Other Revenues 31,000 46,900 30,900 (16.000)
TOTAL REVENUES 1,155,550 1,174,500 1,184,486 9,986
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 249,230 289,530 261,803 27,727
Police and Courts 285.465 320,915 308,998 11917
Fire 58,425 61,225 61,225
Public Works/Streets 458,859 593,613 559,580 34,033
Parks 174,000 158,787 15,213
Promotions & Tourism 204,962 30,000 24,976 5,024
Economic Develupment 63,235 54,045 48,096 5,949
Housing & Development 23,830 36.380 33,639 2,741
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,344,006 1,559,708 1,457,104 102,604
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES {188,456) (385,208) (272,618) 112,590
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Sale of Assets . - -
Transfers In 188,456 385,208 10,372 (374.836)
Transfers Out : - .
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 188,456 385,208 10,372 (374,836)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES . (262,246) (262,246)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 744,305 745,905 HOBH36 244931
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 744,305 3 745,905 $ 728,590 $ (17.315)

The accompunying notes are an integral part of these financial stutements
9




PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Water, Sewer, & Sanitation
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 963,445
Accounts Receivable, net 29,934
Due from Other Funds 2
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 993,379
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:

tand and Improvement 2,222

Depreciable Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation o 3,136,397
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 3,138,619
TOTAL ASSETS 4,131,998
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items 5,450
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,450

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences 2,229
Due to Other Funds :
Customer Deposits Payble 12,497
Capital Leases Payable
Notes Payable 100,694
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 115,420
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated Absences 303
Capital Leases
Notes Payable 1,481,601
Net Pension Liability 33.851
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 1,515,755
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,631,175
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items 5,136
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5136
NET POSITION

Net [nvested in Capital Assets 1,556,324
Restricted for Capital Projects -
Unrestricted 944,813
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 2,501,137

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an inteyral part of these finuncial statements
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

Water Fees

Sanitation Fees

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Water

Sanitation

Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental Revenue

Interest and Investment Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue (Expenses)

Interest Expense

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
Transfers In

Transters Out

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water, Sewer, & Sanitation

410,803
191,972

602,775

230,365
147,975
180,674

559,014

43,761

934

(20,898)

(19,964)

23,797

23,797

2,477,340

2,501,137

The uccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers

Payments to or on Behalf of Employees
NET CASH PROVIDED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers to Other Funds
L.oans to Other Funds

Loans from Other Funds

NET CASH PROVIDED FOR NON-CAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transters In From Other Funds
Proceeds from Notes Payable

Principal Payments on Note Payables

Purchases of Capital Assets
Interest Paid

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investments Redeemed
Interest Earned

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation Expense
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, net
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses

Deferred Outflows for Pension Items

Accounts Payables
Compensated Absences
Customer Deposit Payables
Net Pension Liability

Deferred Inflows for Pension Items
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sanitation Fund

5 694,481
(217.222)
(167.734)

309.525

(99,629)

(20,898)

(120,527)

934
934

189932

773513

$ 963,445

o

43,761

180,674

23,775
61,614
515
6,201
(6.583)
2,046
3,334
(9,308)
£.4Y96

s 309.525

The accompunying notes are an integral purt of these financiul statements



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Sky Valley, Georgia (the “City”) was incorporated, under the laws of the State of Georgia,
in 1986 and operates under an elected Mayor-Council form of government. The City provides such
services as police protection, fire services, economic development services, parks and recreation
amenities, planning and building inspection, municipal court services, public works, water and
sewer services, sanitation services, and general and administrative services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
accounting policies of the City are described below.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the City (the primary government)
organizations for which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

For financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units. The
decision whether to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by
applying the criteria set forth in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The City has no
component units.

GASB 14 defines the foundation of a primary government as its separately elected governing body;
one that is elected by the citizens in a general population election. The primary government
consists of all of the organizations that make up its legal entity. All funds, organizations,
institutions, agencies, departments and offices that are not legally separate are, for financial
reporting purposes, part of the primary government. The primary government is also financially
accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of the
organizations governing body and either imposes its will on the organization or there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens
on, the primary government.

The City has no relationships with legally separate organizations that are required to be included in
the reporting entity for financial statement purposes. However, fire protection services are

13



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

provided by an independently organized volunteer group. The City supports this group paying a
quarterly fee for their services.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on ali of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Government-wide financial
statements do not provide information by fund, but distinguish between the City’'s governmental
activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The statement of net position will
include non-current assets and non-current liabilities. In addition, the government-wide statement
of activities reflects depreciation expense on the City’s capital assets.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It is used to account for resources
traditionally associated with the City, which are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in a different fund.
The SPLOST Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of capital
expenditures which are financed by the special purpose local option sales tax (SPLOST)

proceeds from Rabun County.

The City reports its nonmajor governmental fund in a single column in the fund financial
statements.
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The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Water and Sanitation Fund accounts for the operation of the water utility system and
the activities associated with the collection of residential and commercial garbage. Activity
is rendered on a user charge basis and the fund includes all revenues from sources
applicable to the system’s operations and all expenses of the operation.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propriety fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied.
Other taxes are recognized predominately when the underlying transaction occurs. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty days of the end of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and judgements are recorded only when
payments are due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, business taxes, charges for services, and interest associated with
the current year are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues in the current year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the City.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange
Transactions,” the corresponding assets (receivables) in non-exchange transactions are recognized
in the period in which the underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen,
when all eligibility requirements have been met, or when resources are received, depending on the
revenue source.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the government's enterprise fund are charges to customers for
goods and services. Operating expenses of the enterprise funds include the costs of these goods
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. BUDGETS

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds. The budgets for the proprietary funds are
for management control purposes and are not required to be reported. Budgets are adopted on a
modified accrual basis, which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental funds, except the capital projects funds, which adopt project-length budgets. All
appropriations lapse at year end. Encumbrance accounting - under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that
portion of the applicable appropriation - is not employed by the City.

E. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Georgia statutes authorize the City to invest in the following: (1) obligations of Georgia or any
other state; (2) obligations of the United States; (3) obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the
United States government or one of its agencies; (4) obligations of any corporation of the United
States government; (5) prime bankers’ acceptances; (6) the State of Georgia local government
investment pool; (7) repurchase agreements; and (8) obligations of any other political subdivisions
of the State of Georgia. Any investment or deposit in excess of the federal depository insured
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amounts must be collateralized by an equivalent amount of state or U.S. obligations. For purposes
of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 3 months or
less are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted
market prices.

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and certificates of deposit with original maturities of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition.

F. RECEIVABLES

Allreceivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. Estimated unbilled revenues from the
enterprise funds are recognized at the end of each fiscal year based on the amount of service
provided prior to year end.

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the year are referred to as either “"due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds” (i.e,, the non-current portion of interfund
loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances”.

H. INVENTORY

Inventories, consisting of expendable supplies, not held for resale are valued at cost using the first-
in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

I. PREPAID ITEMS

Prepaid items consist of certain payments to vendors in which the costs are applicable to future
accounting periods. These items are recognized as expenditures during the benefitting period in
both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

J. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,

bridges, sidewalks, culverts, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
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GASB Statement No. 34 required the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets
effective with the year ended December 31, 2003. Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges,
underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assets
are among the largest asset classes of the City. The City reported general infrastructure assets
placed into service after January 1, 2003.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. In the case of donations, the government values these
capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item at the date of its donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized, but charged to operations when incurred. Upon sale or
retirement of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are
eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of
operation

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the assets constructed. No interest was capitalized during 2017.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Itis the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. There is no liability for non-vesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits since
the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when the employees separate from service with
the City. All vacation pay is accrued when in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

L. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements and the propriety fund in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or propriety fund statement of net
position.

Proprietary fund type loans payable are reported as liabilities at their outstanding value. Loan
issuance costs are reported as expenses when incurred.
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M. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES/DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The deferred outflow of resources relates to
pensions. These amounts are described more fuily below.

[n addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one type of deferred
inflows of resources which arise under the accrual basis of accounting that relates to pensions and
is described below.

The City has deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the recording of changes in its
net pension liability. Certain changes in the net position liability are recognized as pension expense
over time instead of being recognized in the year of occurrence. Experience gains or losses result
from periodic studies by the City’s actuary which adjust the net pension liability for actual
experience for certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the assumed
dates of retirement of plan members. These experience gains or losses are recorded as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over
the expected remaining lives of plan members. Changes in actuarial assumption which adjust the
net pension liability are also recorded as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining service lives of plan
members. The difference between projected investment return on pension investments and actual
returns on those investments is also deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five
year period. Additionally, any contributions made by the City to the pension plan before year end
but subsequent to the measurement date of the City’s net pension liability are reported as deferred
outflows of resources.

N. FUND EQUITY AND NET POSITION

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as fund balance. Fund
equity for all other reporting is classified as net position.
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Fund Balance
In accordance with GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not spendable
in form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash like inventories and prepaid items)
or are (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The City has not reported any
amounts that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - includes amounts restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legisiation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, laws of other governments, or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund
balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the City Council, the City’s highest level of
decision making authority, which include the language “committed for the purpose of".
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through adoption of a subsequent resolution,
which shall refer to the original resolution by its number. A resolution committing amounts must
be adopted prior to the end of the fiscal year; however, the amount to be committed may be
determined within 120 days of fiscal year end.

Assigned - includes amounts that the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the
definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Amounts may be assigned by the City Manager,
under the authorization of the City Council, through a written memorandum. Amounts
appropriated to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent fiscal year's budget shall constitute
assignments and are documented by adoption of the City’s annual operating budget. Equity
amounts reported in special revenue funds or capital project funds not otherwise classified as non-
spendable, restricted, or committed shall constitute assignments of fund balance.

Unassigned - includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above four categories. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not
been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The General
Fund is the only fund that should report this category of fund balance.

For the purposes of fund balance classification, the City considers restricted amounts spent first
when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Additionally, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of
the unrestricted classifications of fund balance can be used, then committed amounts are spent
first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.
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Net Positi

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in reporting which utilizes the economic resources
measurement focus. Net position reported as net investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on the use of assets either through enabling legislation adopted
by the City Council or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. All other amounts reported under net position are reported as
unrestricted. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

0. MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior toJanuary 1, the department heads submit to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for each department for the fiscal year commencing January 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to December 31, the City Council approves the budget.

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments within
any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department must
be approved by the City Council.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level in the
General Fund. The enterprise fund adopts a budget at the fund level for management purposes.
During the year, the supplementary budgetary appropriations made were not material.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

Credit Risk - The City’s policy is to adhere to the State statutes as it relates to credit risk for
investments. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or
other states; obligations issued by the U.S. Government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by
the U.S. Government or by a government agency of the United States; obligations of any corporation
of the U.S. Government; prime banker’s acceptances; the local government investment pool
established by state law; repurchase agreements; and obligations of other political subdivisions of
the State of Georgia.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or
will not be able to recover securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes
require all deposits and investments (other than federal and state government instruments) to be
collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public
authorities, counties, or municipalities. The State of Georgia requires financial institutions to
pledge securities at 110% of a local government's deposits. At December 31,2017, all of the
deposits of the City were fully collateralized in accordance with state statutes.

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of investments. The City has not formally adopted an investment policy to address
interest rate risk.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

The City receives property tax assessments from Rabun County, Georgia. Property taxes are levied
on property values assessed as of January 1. Tax bills were levied on all real and personal property
and mailed to taxpayers in October, and were due and payable on or before January 2017. After
that date, both penalty and interest are accrued until the taxes are collected. Property taxes attach
an enforceable lien on property as of May 2017. Property taxes are recorded as receivables and
deferred revenues when assessed.

Receivables as of December 31, 2017 for the City’s individual major funds and non-major funds in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

IS
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Water &
General Sanitation
Receivables:
Taxes $ 76,631 3
Accounts - 54,922
Less allowance for
Uncollectible - (24,988)
Net Total Receivables $ 76,631 $ 29,934

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANFERS

During normal operations, the City will occasionally pay for goods and services or transfer monies
between the general and enterprise fund (water and sanitation). All interfund balances are the
result of a time lag between dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made. As of December 31, 2017, there were no interfund receivables
and/or payables between the general fund and the water and sanitation fund.

Interfund transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and 2) use restricted revenues
collected to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. Transfers are eliminated in the government wide financial statements if the
interfund transfer is within the governmental fund group or business-type group.

The interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows:

(Transfers Out)

Hotel/Motel

Transfers In General Fund Tax Fund
General Fund $ 10,372 $ (10,372)
$ 10372 $ (10,372)
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
land and Improvements § 251739 $ . $ $ 251,739
Total assets, not being depreciated 251,739 . - 251,739
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 336,302 155,820 - 492,122
Infrastructure 468,223 364,365 - 832,588
Machinery & Equipment 320,278 - - 320,278
Vehicles 148,408 17,000 = 165,408
Total assets, being depreciated 1273211 537,185 1,810,396
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (116,443) (19,870) . (136,313)
Infrastructure (18,443) (15,607) (34,050)
Machinery & Equipment (243,428) (18,895) - (262,323)
Vehicles (47,276) (27,012) . (74,288)
Total accumulated depreciation (425.590) (81,384) - (506,974)
Total assets, being depreciated, net 847,621 455,801 - 1,303,422
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 1,099,360 $ 455,801 $ - $ 1,555,161
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Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land and Improvements
Total assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & Improvments
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Total assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvments
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total assets, being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Govermment

Public Safety:
Police and Courts

Public Works/Streets

Parks

Housing & Development

Total Depreciation Expense,
Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Water

Sanitation

Total Depreciaton Expense,
Business-type Activities

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
$ 2,222 $ L 3 $ 2,222
2,222 2,222
17,500 17,500
159,532 159,532
40,071 40,071
5126982 5,126,982
5,344,085 5,344,085
(16,334) (583) (16917)
(65.567) (11597) (77,164)
(35,488) (2,500) (37.988)
(1909625) (165,994) (2,075,619)
(2027014) (180,674) (2,207.688)
3317071 {180,674) 3,136,397
$ 3319293 $ (180674) % $ 3138619

$ 12922

18,328
43,257
1,359

5,517

381383

$ 169,077

11,597

$ 180,674
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning Due Within One
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance Year

Governmentl Activites:

Compensated Absences $ 19975 $ $  (7699) 3 12,276 ] 8,335

Net Pension Liability 144,490 (31,162) 113,328 -
Governmental Activites

Long-term Liabilities § 164465 3 - § (388611 3 125604 3 8,335
Business-Type Activities:

Compensated Absences $ 486 $ 2,046 $ $ 2,532 $ 2,229

Notes Payable 1,681,924 (99.629) 1582295 100,694

Net Pension Liability 43,159 (9,308) 33851
Business-Type Activities

Long-term Liabilities $ 1725569 $ 2,046 $ (108937) § 1618678 3 102,923

Business-Type Activities

Note Payables

The City’s water and sanitation fund has two Georgia Environmental Finance Authority (GEFA)
loans to improve and renovate portions of the water system. Note payables outstanding as of
December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Maturity Beginning Ending

Loan Interest Rate Dates Balance Additions Reductions Balance
GEFA DW09024 0.00% 12/1/2031 $ 969,360 §$ - $  (64,624) $ 904,736
GEFA DW10018 3.00% 1/1/2033 712,564 - {35,005) 677,559
Total Notes Payable $ 1,681,924 $ $  (99,629) $1,582,295

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the note payables are as follows:

Year Ending December 31 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 100,694 $ 19,833 $ 120527
2019 101,791 18,736 120527
2020 102,922 17,606 120,528
2021 104,086 16,441 120,527
2022 105,287 15,241 120,528
2023-2027 545,755 63,454 609,209
2028-2032 517,113 28,534 545,647
2033 4,647 1,047 5,694
Total $ 1,582,295 $ 180892 $ 1,763,187
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN

The City, as authorized by the City Council, has established a non-contributory defined benefit
pension plan (The City of Sky Valley Retirement Plan), covering substantially all of the City's
employees. The City’s pension plan is administered through the Georgia Municipal Employee
Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia
Municipal Association. Contributions made by the City are commingled with contributions made
by other members of GMEBS for investment purposes. The City does not own any securities on its
own. Investment income from the securities is allocated on a pro rata basis. The Georgia Municipal
Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for GMEBS. That report may be obtained at www.gmanet.com
or by writing to Georgia Municipal Association, Risk Management and Employee Benefit Services,
201 Pryor Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 or by calling (404)688-0472.

The City Council, in its role as Plan Sponsor, has the governing authority to establish and amend
from time to time, the benefits provided and the contribution rates of the City and its employees.
The Plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All employees, excluding elected officials, who work
thirty hours or more per week are eligible to participate in the Plan immediately upon hiring, but
will not be vested until 5 years of service. Benefits are provided by the Plan whereby retirees
receive 1.25% multiplied by the average of the five highest years of regular earnings multiplied by
the total credited years of service. Death benefits are calculated using an actuarial reserve.

Asofjuly 1, 2017, the date the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 27 participants
consisting of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benetits 8
Terminated vested participants not yet receiving benefits 9
Active employees - Vested 7
Active employees - Non-vested 3
Total 27

Funding Policy

The plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement Systems
Standards law. The Board of Trustees of GMEBS has adopted a recommended actuarial funding
policy for the plan which meets state minimum requirements and will accumulate sufficient funds
to provide the benefits under the plan. The funding policy for the Plan, as adopted by the City
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Council, is to contribute an amount equal to or greater than the actuarially recommended
contribution rate. This rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of plan members, as determined by the City Council. For
fiscal year 2017, the actuarially determined contribution rate was 6.16% of covered payroll. City
contributions to the Plan were $28,825 for the year ended December 31, 2017. Employees of the
City do not contribute to the plan. For fiscal year 2018, based on July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation,
the recommended contribution rate will be 6.84%.

Net Pension Liability of the City

At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $147,179 for its net pension liability. The
City’s net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2017. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2017
with update procedures performed by the actuary to roll forward to the total pension liability
measured as of July 1, 2017.

The changes in the components of the net pension liability of the City for the year ended December
31,2017 were as follows:

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

Balances at December 31, 2016 $ 673912 $ 486,263 $ 187,649
Changes tor the Year:

Service Cost 15174 - 15174

Interest 50,703 50,703

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (22,782) - (22,782}

Contributions - Employer . 27,164 (27.164)

Net Investment Income - 60,455 (60,455}

Benefit Payments (Including Refunds of Employee

Contributions) (39,367) (39,367) -

Adminstrative Expense - (4,054) 4,054

Other - - -
Net Changes 3,728 44,198 110,470)
Balances at December 31, 2017 3 677.6:40 $ 530,461 $ 147,179
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $30,515. At
December 31,2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 4,756 $ (21,840)
Changes of Assumptions 586 -
Net Ditference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on
Pension Plan Investments - (486)
City Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 21,619 -
Total $ 26,961 $ (22,326)

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $21,619 are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending December 31

2018 3 5,797
2019 5,797
2020 1,899
2021 3,491
Total 3 16,984

The total pension liability in the March 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.25%
Salary Increases 3.75% - 8.00%, including inflation
Investment Rate of Return  7.75%, net of penion plan investment expense, including intlaton

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with sex-distinct
rates, set forward two years for males and one year for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through june 30, 2014.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of March 31, 2017 are summarized in
the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return*
Domestic Equity 45% 6.71%
International Equity 20% 7.71%

Global Fixed Income 5% 3.36%
Domestic Fixed Income 20% 2.11%
Real Estate 10%, 521%
Cash 0%

Total 100%

* Rates shown are net of the 3.25% assumed rate ot inflation

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that City contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was applied to all of the
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
7.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate 1 percentage point lower (6.75%) and 1 percentage point higher (8.75%) than the current rate

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
[6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
City's Net Pension Liability $ 242,507 $ 147,179 $ 68,273
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the
substantive plan in effect as of July 1, 2017 and the current sharing pattern of costs between
employer and employee.

The required schedule of changes in the City's net pension liability and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether
the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total pension liability.

NOTE 9 - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the northeast Georgia
area, is a member of the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission (GMRC) and is required to pay
annual dues thereto. Membership in a GMRC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated
(OCGA) Section 50-8-34, which provides for the organization structure of a regional commission.
GMRC board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality of the
area. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or
obligations of the GMRC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from the Georgia
Mountains Regional Commission, P.0. Box 1720, Gainesville, Georgia 30503.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined

together with other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management

Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Georgia Municipal Association Group Self-

Insurance Workers Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as common

risk management and insurance programs for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as
prescribed by the pools, to cooperate with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction
procedures established by the funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with
any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay
any claim of loss. The City is also to allow the pool’s agents and attorneys to represent the City in
investigation, settlement discussions, and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made
against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed

in the member government contract and in accordance with the worker’s compensation law of
Georgia. The funds are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by
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the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment, and all expenses incurred for
investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three (3) years have not exceeded insurance coverage

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation
The City is involved in pending lawsuits in the normal course of the City’s business. Liability, if any,
which might result from these proceedings, would not, in the opinion of management and legal
counsel, have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the City.

Grant Contingencies
The City has received grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously
reimbursed by those agencies. Based upon prior experience, management of the City believes such
disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

NOTE 12 - HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX
The City imposes a hotel/motel tax on lodging facilities within the City. The tax was assessed at 5%.
Revenues were $17,287 for the year ended December 31, 2017. Of this amount, 40%, or $6,915,

was expended. Expenditures of the tax were used to promote tourism, conventions, and trade
shows and for tourism product development as required by 0.C.G.A. 48-13-51.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION INFORMATION

NOTE 1

Valuation Date

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

The actuarially determined contribution was determined as of July 1, 2017, with an interest adjustment to the fiscal
year. Contributuions in relations to this actuarially determined contribution will be reported for the ending December

31,2017

NOTE 2

Significant methods and assumptions used in calculating the actuarially determined calcutations are as follows:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases

Cost of Living Adjustments
Retirement Age

Mortality Rates

Healthy
Disabled

Plan Termination Basis

NOTE 3

Changes in Benefits

Projected Unit Credit
Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability

Remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net
effective amortization period of 10 years

Sum of actuanial value at beginning of year and the cash flow
during the year plus the assumed investment return, adjusted
by 10% of the amount that the value exceeds or is less than
the market value at end of year. The actuarial value s
adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20% of market value

7 75%

3.25% plus service based merit increases
0.00%

65

RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with sex distinct
rates, set forward 2 years for males and 1 year for females

RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table with sex-distinct rates

1994 Group Annuity Reserving Unisex Table

Effective January 1, 2015, the Plan was amended to provide for immediate participation for Employees. This change
has no impact on service credited under the Plan and has no impact on benefits.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

NOTE 4

Changes of Assumptions

As a result of the new administrative fee structure approved by the Board, the administrative expense assumption was
updated for fiscal years beginning n 2016

As a result of the plan change to provide immediate participation for Employees, for the fiscal year ending in 2015, the
eligibility assumption has been changed from six month to immediate. The increase in the Plan’s net pension liability
is minimal and has been included in the differences between expected and actuanal experience

Amounts reported for the fiscal year ending in 2015 and later reflect the following assumption changes approved by
the Board in December 2014 based on the results of an actuanal experience study covering the period January 1, 2010
to June 30, 2014:

The mortality table for disabled participants was changed to remove the two-year set-forward for males and the
one-year set-forward for females

The turnover rates were updated to introduce select rates for service less than five years and to reduce the
ultimate rate by 15% and to assume no turnover on and after age 55. The select period rates were further
constramed to not be less than the ultimate rates

The retirement rates where normal retirement is only available on or after age 65 were changed from the prior
assumption of 100% at age 65 to the new assumption of 60% at ages 65 to 69 and 100% at age 70. Where normal
retirement is available prior to age 65, the rates were changed from the prior assumption of 100% at earliest
unreduced age, but not below age 60, to the new assumption of 10% at ages 55 to 59, 20% at age 60, 25% at age
61,35% at age 62, 40% at age 63, 45% at age 64, 50% at ages 65 to 69, and 100% at age 70.

The inflation assumption was decreased from 3.50% to 3.25%.

The salary increase assumption was changed from select penod rates during the first five years of service,
followed by age-related rates to an assumption based on new service-related rates. Under the prior assumption,
the salary increases ranged from 4.00% to 11.00% and included an inflation assumption of 3.50%. Under the new
assumption, the salary increases range from 3.75% to 8.00% and include an inflation assumption of 3.25%.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
SPECIAL PURPOSE LLOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

RABUN COUNTY SPLOST
Roads

TOTAL RABUN COUNTY SPLOST $ 350.00()_ $ 350,000

Estimated
Original Current Prior Years Total Percentage
Estimated Estimated Cumulative Current Year Cumulative of
Cost Cost Expenditures Expenditures  Expenditures Completion
3 350000 % 350000 % 350,000 $ 3 350.000 100%
$ 350000 § : ~$ 350,000



COMPLIANCE SECTION
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor. Members of the
City Council and City Manager
Of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standurds issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of City of Sky Valley, Georgia
(the “City”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
June 29,2018

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2017-1 to be a significant deficiency.

B854 NASHINGTON STREET SUITE 200 103 MIDWAY DRIVE SUITE C 545 D HELEN HIGHWAY

CLARKESVILLE. GEORGIA 0523 CORNELIA. GLORGIA 3053 CLEVELAND. GEORGIA 3052%
OFFICE 706 754-1040 OFFICE 706 778 2154 OFFICE 706-865 7200

FAX 706 754 0403 FAX 706 774 1982 Fax 706 754 0403



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Sky Valley, Georgia’s Response to Findings

The City's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

INVver Pcien Brouwe o« Dewck CHPA
Mixon, Mixon, Brown & Tench, CPAs

Cornelia, Georgia

June 29,2018
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Finding 2017-1

Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - Inadequate Training for
Preparation of Financial Statements

Condition: The City personnel may require additional training in the application of generally
accepted accounting principles and the preparation of financial statements. Currently, the City
relies on the external auditors for technical assistance in applying generally accepted accounting
principles and the preparation of financial statements. This is common in governments in similar
size and structure of the City. This does not indicate that the Finance Director is not trained to
perform the daily accounting functions, but that the City has elected as a cost benefit to outsource
this expertise to their auditors. As required, we have indicated this finding as a significant
deficiency in our Internal Control and Compliance Report.

Criteria: The City should possess the ability to prepare its own financial statements or have access
to someone with adequate technical training and education to review the financial statements

prepared by others.

Effect. The City does not have the accounting skill necessary to prepare financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Recommendation: The City should continue to receive training in identification and application of
generally accepted accounting principles and the preparation of the City’s financial statements.

Management’s Response: Management concurs with this finding.
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Planned Corrective Action: We agree with this finding, and will continue to seek training for adequate
preparation of our financial statements.

Name of Contact Person: Linda Lapeyrouse; Phone: (706)746-2204; Email: svcitymanager@windstream.net

R W T e e e e T R e e e
3444 Highway 246, Dillard. Georgia 30537

www.skvvalleyga.com
Telephone: 706-746-2204

Facsimile: 706-746-5893




CITY OF SKY VALLEY
REQUEST FOR QUOTES
June 1, 2018

REQUEST FOR QUOTES - SCENIC OVERLOOK FENCE

The City of Sky Valley is requesting quotes for the installation of 216 feet of fencing to replace the
columns and railroad ties at the scenic overlook located at 2978 Highway 246, Sky Valley, GA.
Demolition of the existing fence will be done by the City.

Materials to be supplied by City:

{28) 8" x 8” pressure treated posts
(54) 4" x 6” x 8” pressure treated rails
(108) 6” x 3/8” hexhead lag bolt, galvanized

Quotes shall include all labor, equipment and other miscellaneous materials not included above which
will be necessary to complete the job. The building permit will be supplied by the City of Sky Valley.

Proof of workers compensation and liability insurance will be required upon notification of acceptance
of the quote by the City

This form including the specifications must be used in submitting a quote. Responses must be emailed to
citymanager@skyvalleyga.com or mailed to Linda Lapeyrouse, City Manager, City of Sky Valley, 3444
Highway 246, Sky Valley, GA 30537, and must be received by 12:00 PM, Friday, June 15, 2018. It is the
responsibility of the responders to assure their quotes arrive at the proper location by the time
indicated. Late quotes will not be accepted or considered. The City of Sky Valley reserves the right to
waive any requirements and/or specifications included, to reject any or all quotes, waive technicalities
or informalities, and to accept any quote that in its judgment best services the interest of the City and is
deemed to be more suitable for its needs.

Total Quote

Amount lg 4:, " 0 O
Vvendor (Firm) Name 4/“4’\.&—@(}\ ;éd‘ﬁ.k Z;/d

P aan e

Availability to Start Work dweo l—g %me
Person Authorized to Sign for Vendor S . N, LL—“"I Z"‘*_f_d%j

(print)

V:cc, - Pno,s.i,_.‘, , Title

(;\\\‘ azl L\S\ _(Signature)




Customer No. | Job No.

18863

Sold To
CITY OF SKY VALLEY
3444 HWY 246

Purchase Order No.

DILLARD 52 30537
SHIPPED ORDERED m uM SKU
14 EA| 8816PTR

54 EA| 5468PT

216 EA| MF05587

216 BX | MF09142

** ESTIMATE ** ESTIMATE ** ESTIMATE ** ESTIMATE **

TOT WT: 4340.00

X

Received Ry

REEVES HARDWARE-DILLARD

HIGHWAY 441

DILLARD. GA. 30537

PHONE: (706) 746-7414

PLEASE KEEP THIS INVOICE FOR YOUR RECORD
THANK YOU FOR SHOPPING AT REEVES !

Reference

Ship To

DESCRIPTION
8X8-16FT-PT ROUGH
5/4X6X8' DECK PT GROUND CONTACT
3/8X6 GALV. LAG SCREWS
3/8_Fl Wash USS Galv
468PT ARE #1 GRADE I CAN ORDER
#2
NEED A FEW DAYS TO GET IN- I DO
HAVE TRUCK ON ORDER NOW I CAN
ADD TO

(LINDA LAPEYROUSE )

Terms

EXP. DATE:

Clerk
VWRJ

7/27/18

TERM#630

00 HOUSE ACCOUNT
500 DILLARD

UNITS PRICE/PER |
14 137.99 /EA
54 17.69 /EA
216 .79 /EA
216 .14 /BX
TAXABLE
NON-TAXABLE
SUBTOTAL
TAX AMOUNT

TOTAL AMOUNT

PAGE NO 1

Date Time
7/10/18 2:41
DOC# 45007

%k gk ok ok kok ok kok k%

* ESTIMATE *

LR R AR RS EE SRS

EST. 45007

9
<

s

{TENSIQ

1,931.86
955.26
170.64

30.24

=

2222

0.00
3088.00
3088.00

0.00
3088.00




3 QUOTE

Store 8412 CLAYTON,GA
1551 HWY 441 SOUTH
CLAYTON, GA 30525

-

Y

Phone: (706) 782-4664
Salesperson: KXS6501
Reviewer: KXS6501

Page1of2 INO. MNO4 14~-4U09Y

Name Phone 1 oc O-dlm
LAPEYROUSE LINDA (706) 746-2204
address 3444 HIGHWAY 246 Phone 2
Company Neme | TY OF SKY VALLEY
Cty  DILLARD Job Description  oyarlook fence material 2018-07-10 10:12
sele  GA zi 30537 Conty  RABUN Prices Valid Thru: 07/10/2018
Ocm._-ogmm v_o —AC—U #A gmmo —|—>Z U—mm >z U mmx<_om mc g g>x< ,m\,n\vﬁ_waﬂwomMchm&PMN@Z to limit the quantities of merchandise
REF # W08  SKU # 0000-515-664  Customer Pickup / Will Call P
STOCK MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: ALY
REF # SKU QTY | um DESCRIPTION PI_|TAX| PRICE /m\%% EXTENSION
RO2 | 0000-259-270 54.00| EA|4X6-8FT #2 PT GC/ A N 31 $16.38 $884.52
RO3 | 0000-543-754 9.00] BX|LAG SCREWS-GALV. 3/8 X 6-25PK / A KRS $32.85 $295.65
RO6 | 0000-337-527 2.00] BX|WASHER CUT 3/8 GALV BOX-100PK / A R $4.10 $8.20
RO7 | 0000-156-727 1.00| BG|3/8" CUT WASHERS HDG - 25 PC / .\ | N $1.82 $1.82
S.0. MERCHANDISE TO BE PICKED UP: ____S/O GREAT SOUTHERN REF # S01 AP
S0101 | 1000-025-380 14.00] EA[8450156 / 8x8-16' SYP #1 YellaWood S4S Pressure Tr/ \SYP #1 A | N $137.11 $1.919 5
YellaWood S4S Pressure Treated (MCA Critical Struc
[HDQC:5456226.1.002] [QC] PRI
SCHEDULED PICKUP DATE: Will be scheduled upon arrival of all S/O z_mq%m:%@@,v? MERCHANDISE TOTAL: $3.109.7
= END OF CUSTOMER PICKUP - REF #W08

aage 1 of 2

No. H8412-40359

=

Wl

FOR WILL CALL
MERCHANDISE PICK-UP
PROCEED TO WILL CALL OR
SERVICE DESK AREA

(Pro Customers, Proceed To The Pro Desk)

* Indicates item markdown
Customer Cobv



JUOTE - Continued Name: LAPEYROUSE

Page 2 of 2

NO. No4 14£-4U09Y

TOTAL CHARGES OF ALL MERCHANDISE & SERVICES

Policy Id (PI):
A: 90 DAYS DEFAULT POLICY;

"The Home Depot reserves the right to limit / deny returns. Please see the return policy sign in stores for details.’

ORDER TOTA $3,109.7¢
SALES TAX $0.0(
TOTAL $3.109.7¢
BALANCE DUE $3.109.7¢

END OF ORDER No. H8412-40359

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
WILL CALL

Will Call items will be held in the store for 7 days. For Will Call merchandise pick up, proceed to Will Call/Service Desk area(Pro Customers, proceed to the Pro Desk).

Returns: A 15% restocking fee applies to the return of regular special orders, i.e., special orders merchandise that is not custom made. Special orders that are custom uniquely designed or fitted to accommodate
the requirements of a particular space or enviranment (some examples are cabinetry, countertops, floor and wall coverings, and window treatments) are non-returnable. Exceptions: Cancellations made
by midnight on the third business day after the date of Your purchase, merchandise incorrectly ordered by Home Depal or by Professional; or merchandise damaged beyond repair in delivery or by

Professional. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all returns must be made within Home Depot's posted time frame.

ace20f2 No. H8412-40359 Customer Cobv
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Request for Proposal
Tree Trimming Services 2018

June 4, 2018
Procurement Contact — Linda Lapeyrouse
citymanager@skyvalleyga.com



1.  CITY OF SKY VALLEY OVERVIEW

The City of Sky Valley’s intent is to establish hourly pricing for right-of-way tree trimming
services for an annual contract. Hourly prices should include supervision, materials, labor,
and equipment needed for a satisfactory completion of each project. Contractor shall perform
services within the Tree Care Industry Association (TCIA) Standards (formerly known as
National Arborist Association Standards), and shall take all reasonable and customary safety
measures to protect people, property, and the surrounding environment. All work shall be
conducted in a safe manner and shall comply with all governing regulations concerning
safety.

2. ATTACHMENTS
Appendix "A” — Price Proposal

3. PROJECT SCOPE & OBJECTIVES

The City of Sky Valley is soliciting proposals for right-of-way tree trimming services within the
city limits, including the following:

«  Work, not exceeding, 100 hours is to commence approximately the week of July
30th, 2018, and must be completed no later than the week of August 27th, 2018.

s Provision of all equipment required to execute the work.

¢ All equipment must be in compliance with applicabie inspection requirements.

« Traffic control must meet Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)
Standards.

¢ Must have a minimum of 5 years’ experience.

¢ Mobilization & de-mobilization of equipment and resources.

¢ Daily mobilization & de-mobilization of equipment and resources to specific work
areas as designated by the City of Sky Valley.

¢ Provide and assure compliance in using personal protective equipment such as
hard hats, gloves, goggles, harnesses, and safety shoes to Contractor’'s workers
and personnel.

¢ Daily disposal of debris in an approved manner.

¢ Erect and maintain adequate barricades, signage, and traffic cones, and
safeguard work area to prevent damage to all property and for the safety of
employees and other people. Contractor shall secure equipment and materials
that are stored temporarily in or around a project site.

¢ Clean the area of all debris and trash remaining as a result of the completion of
a project.

RFP - Tree Trimming Services 2018
Page 2



e Beresponsible for the repair of any damage caused by the Contractor and shall,
at no cost and to the satisfaction of the City of Sky Valley, restore all areas to
their original condition including, but not limited to, structures, grass, plant
materials and ground areas.

e All tree trimming to be performed according to the Tree Care Industry Association
(TCIA) Standards.

The Contractor will be provided with a map of areas where tree trimming services are
required.

The City of Sky Valley shall have the option to extend this contract for up to two (2) renewals,
such extension to be upon the same terms, conditions, and covenants contained in this
Request for Proposal, excepting rates which shall be agreed upon by the City of Sky Valley
and bidder. Each extension will be awarded individually on a yearly basis.

City of Sky Valley’s objective is to select a Contractor that:

a. Is competitive from a quality and cost perspective;
b. Has the ability to meet the schedule dates;
c. Provide the required documentation.

4. SOLICITATION SCHEDULE

Proponents should base their proposals on the following dates:
RFP issued: June 4, 2018
Questions & Clarifications June 25, 2018
from Proponents due:

June 29, 2018
Proposals due:

Please note that the above schedule is subject to change.

—_—--——
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3. FORMS & SUBMISSIONS

a) Proposalis:

Proposal submissions, signed by an authorized company officer, are due no later than 3:00
p.m. EST on June 29, 2018. Proposals received after that time may not be accepted and
may be returned to the sender.

Proposals are required in two separate parts:

1) Technical Proposal
2) Price Proposal.

The individual sections are to be segregated. The Technical Proposal will be evaluated first. If it
is found in order, the Price Proposal will be reviewed. The Technical Proposal shall have no
direct or indirect reference to any price or financials related to the proposal. Any submissions
that are found violating this clause at any stage may be disqualified without further explanation.
Both parts of the proposal shall be submitted on or before the due date for submitting the
proposal.

Please provide one key contact for all matters relating to the RFP process.

Proposals that have been received by the City of Sky Valley prior to the issuance of this RFP
will not be considered by the City of Sky Valley under this process and should be resubmitted.

b) Where to send proposals:

Please submit your proposal no later than 3 p.m. June 29, 2018.

Mail
Proposals may be submitted in a sealed package clearly marked on the outside with

“RFP - Tree Trimming Services 2018” to:

Linda Lapeyrouse
City of Sky Valley
3444 Highway 246
Sky Valley, GA 30537

Email

Submit via email to citymanager@skyvalleyga.com Proposals submitted
electronically must be in Abode Portable Document Format (PDF). Proposals must
be formatted for single space with each page numbered.

The City of Sky Valley reserves the right to reject any proposals that do not meet the
requirements of this section.

h
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6. QUESTIONS AND ADDENDA

The requirements specified in this RFP reflect those presently known. City of Sky Valley
reserves the right to modify solicitation documents by issuing addenda at any time prior to the
due date for the submission of proposals, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in
response to a clarification requested by a proponent.

All proponents are urged to carefully examine the RFP immediately and contact the City of Sky
Valley at once if there are any items that require clarification. Proponents are expected to be
fully conversant with all clauses of the RFP document before responding. All clarifications
deemed by the City of Sky Valley to be material will be issued as written addenda and sent to
all proponents. No verbal interpretation provided by City of Sky Valley shall be valid and only
written addenda shall bind the City of Sky Valley.

In the event of a conflict between the RFP and any addenda, later issued addenda shall govern
to the extent of any such conflict. All addenda shall be deemed to form part of the proponent’s
submission.

All requests for clarification must be directed in writing via e-mail to Linda Lapeyrouse at
iymanager@skyvalleyga com on or before the date stipulated in the Solicitation Schedule.

7.  WITHDRAWAL AND MODIFICATION OF PROPOSALS

Proponents may withdraw their proposal and submit a revised proposal prior to the proposal
due date. After the response deadline, proponent-initiated changes will not be accepted.
Proposals may be withdrawn from consideration at any time prior to the proposal due date.

8. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Responses to all requirements listed below are required, unless otherwise stated as optional.
Responses are to be provided in the same order as listed in this RFP, do not re-number or re-
organize any section.

7.1 Organizational Capabilities

a. Provide a brief overview of your company including your company name and
headquarters address, the name of any sub-contractors or business partners used
as part of this proposal, and length of time in business.

b. Give examples of previous engagements of similar nature/expertise/scale, including
contact information for at least three references that are currently using your services
that the City of Sky Valley may contact.

c. Identify key personnel within your management structure who will ultimately be
accountable to the City of Sky Valley for your company’s performance.

h
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7.2 Quality and Safety
a. Provide a brief description of your safety program.
7.3 Certifications and Requirements

a. Indicate compliance and/or supply the necessary documentation for the following
certifications with your proposal. Your proposal should also list all other certifications
not listed in this RFP:

i. Qualified operator with a minimum of 5 years of experience in similar type
work with a bucket truck that is able to reach 45’
il Chipper
lil. Contractor must have at least the following insurance coverage:
» 31,000,000 Commercial Liability

iv Four (4) men, one (1) truck operator, one (1) ground man and two (2) certified
traffic signalers.
V. Proof of current Workers' Compensation insurance policy.

7.4 Specialized Services

a. Describe any other related services your company supplies.

9. PRICE PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Pricing assumptions should be clearly stated.

Pricing is to include "Everything Necessary” to have the work completed. If a price

element is required but has not been specifically requested in this document,

proponents are required to include the element and clearly note it.

Specify any additional charges for “out-of-scope” work.

Costs should be in US dollars.

e. The prices in the Pricing Proposal shall be the full inclusive value of the work
described, including all costs and expenses which may be required for the work
described together with all general risks, liabilities and obligations set forth or implied
in this RFP.

f. The prices shall be free from any escalation due to labor or material.

g. The price quoted must be an hourly amount that includes the entire crew and all

scope of work.

oo

oo

—_—
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10. KEY SELECTION CRITERIA

City of Sky Valley will evaluate proposals received using the following scoring:

Technical Proposal - 30%

Price Proposal - 70%

11. GENERAL CONDITIONS

Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this RFP, including any schedules or
attachments hereto, this RFP is subject to the following terms and conditions, all of which the
proponent is deemed to accept without qualification by the proponent’s submission of a
proposal in response to this RFP:

a) No Obligations: This is an invitation for proposals. The City of Sky Valley does not
intend to and does not assume or owe any contractual or other duties or obligations as a
result of the issuance of this RFP, the preparation or submission of a proposal by a
proponent, the receipt, opening and consideration of a proposal, the evaluation of
proposals, provision of additional information or conduct of presentations, the
proponent’s participation in any discussions or negotiations, or on any other basis
whatsoever arising out of this RFP. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and
for certainty, no Contract A is formed by the submission of a proposal in response to this
RFP.

b) Discretionary Process: The City of Sky Valley shall have sole and absolute discretion
to:

i) modify or amend the RFP, including without limitation the Solicitation Schedule
for the RFP process, the proposal requirements, or any other terms, whether
material or not.

i) suspend or cancel this RFP at any time.

fli) reject any or all proposals submitted in response to this RFP and, in that event, at
its option, to call for additional proposals.

iv) accept or reject the lowest price propaosal. If only one proposal is received, it may
be selected, accepted or rejected at the City of Sky Valley's discretion.

v) accept any proposal which in any manner, whether substantially or in a non-
substantial or minor way, fails to conform to or comply with any of the
requirements of this RFP, whether or not such requirements are expressed in
mandatory terms, or reject any proposal for any such non-conformity or non-
compliance.

e
RFP - Tree Trimming Services 2018 Page 7



Vi) enter into post-submission negotiations and discussions with any one or more
proponent(s) regarding price, project scope, or any other term of a proponent’s
submission, and such other terms as the City of Sky Valley may require, and to
request additional information and clarification regarding any proposal.

vii) enter into simultaneous competitive negotiations with some or all proponents or
negotiate with individual proponents.

viii)  modify the scope of the project or any component thereof subsequent to the date
for submission of proposals, whether in the context of negotiations or otherwise.

iX) discontinue any negotiations at any time.

X) solicit new proposals from firms that did not respond to this RFP and enter into
negotiations with any such firm including but not limited to negotiations or
proposals for components of the scope, if any, that are not included in the scope
of any contract negotiated and executed with any proponent as a result of this
RFP.

c) Evaluation and Selection: The City of Sky Valley shall have the sole and absolute
discretion to:

i) assess any proposal on the basis of any one or more of the selection criteria set
forth in this RFP, which criteria are not intended to be exhaustive, and/or any
other criterion or factor considered appropriate by the City of Sky Valley.

i) undertake a comparative evaluation of any proposals received and evaluate such
proposals based on considerations which, in the sole opinion of the City of Sky
Valley, would yield the best value to the City of Sky Valley and its taxpayers.

iii) select any proposal considered by the City of Sky Valley to be in its best interests
or the most satisfactory, including without limitation the lowest or any price
proposal.

d) Approval: Any contract or contracts entered into as a result of this RFP process shall be
subject to the City of Sky Valley's financial policy.

e) Governing Law: This RFP and proposals shall be deemed to have been made in the
State of Georgia, Rabun County and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Georgia.

f) Volume of Work: The City of Sky Valley shall not at any time be held responsible if the
estimated volume of work is found to be inaccurate. Service Providers shall not claim
damages or loss of profits because of any difference between the quantities as
estimated and those actually achieved in the progress of the work.

h
e ———
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I_Description R | Per Hour

24 _C /f'fz.//'m?
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WU Ve 0(

Appendix A
Price Proposal

Pricing

The proponent will provide below an hourly price as stated in the RFP.

Crew and all necessary equipment to complete 1 23 f'“' man

scope of work as described in RFP

.' & ‘U
ﬂ7ﬁ {3}"_‘ hr. far iy dﬁ.';alptr dn,pifwh_‘_

6 Man Crew w.th c‘hp,m.-/{:lmp frach |and o)\ cqupment on whibibe Truh

and chan m{_@gu'.pmeﬁ ex. "% ﬂ&f"ﬁ ale ﬁal‘) 00 .Oc.f h¢

Additional Costs for out of scope work, please - ]gd, ne P"‘ man Gn gre“}
describe if any q )
€>‘amv'e9 § on e W th ol equ pmediR00 00 per P/
m + | ipm q n]
Company Name: I;”c«‘IL.J,fq P””‘ 1(81’ Sty ('L" av Crew w.+h ol c",%u r ent ’ 75 O

Contact Information:

Contact Name: Phil E/h—mé g

Contact Title:  @#8® QWneN

Telephone No. $AP-421- 249

Contact Email: M brushd fq»qc,ef@ é ma.l-Com

Signature: %,//é{/

<

Date: ﬁ’:‘-’ .2//2 0/37

/)97/1’ I") 7 7/C>f' ‘Dln(‘/ 7;”/ Féé jl@ F(fr 1’!/‘,

Appendix “A” - Proposal Response Form
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. M I I Ella Fast <cityclerk@skyvalleyga.com

(A W WI,:l\‘

Jucket Truck Bid Summary

message

inda Lapeyrouse <citymanager@skyvalleyga.com> Fri, Jun 15, 2018 at 1:56 PI
9: Bob MacNair <bobmacnair@skyvalleyga.com>, Chip <Chip@durpo.com>, Paul Wheeler <paul@paulwheeler.net>, Allen Piontkowski
allenp3411@gmail.com>, Constance Larsen <oma.folar@yahoo.com>, Neil Howard <neil.hays4499@yahoo.com>, Ella Fast
cityclerk@skyvalleyga.com>

Attached is a summary of the bids received for replacement of the bucket truck.

Our 1994 Chevy 3500 Versalift VST3600 is currently out of service. Repairs to our truck are estimated at $12,100.
| advertised bids for new and used bucket trucks. | received 1 used bid and 6 new bids.

| am sending (under separate cover) the low new bid and the only used bid.

The remaining bids are here for your review or | can email them, but | didn't want to max out everyone's mailbox. Just let me know.

Linda Lapeyrouse
City Manager

City of Sky Valley
3444 Highway 246
Sky Valley, GA 30537
706-746-2204

E-mail: citymanager@skyvalleyga.com
City Website: www.skyvalleyga.com

ﬂ 2543_001.pdf
40K
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(. | M I I Ella Fast <cityclerk@skyvalleyga.com

Jsed Bucket Truck Bid

message

inda Lapeyrouse <citymanager@skyvalleyga.com> Fri, Jun 15, 2018 at 1:57 PI
o: Bob MacNair <bobmacnair@skyvalleyga.com>, Chip <Chip@durpo.com>, Paul Wheeler <paul@paulwheeler.net>, Allen Piontkowski
allenp3411@gmail.com>, Neil Howard <neil.hays4499@yahoo.com>, Constance Larsen <oma.folar@yahoo.com>, Ella Fast
cityclerk@skyvalleyga.com>

See attached used bucket truck bid

Linda Lapeyrouse
City Manager

City of Sky Valley
3444 Highway 246
Sky Valley, GA 30537
706-746-2204

E-mail: citymanager@skyvalleyga.com
City Website: www.skyvalleyga.com

-Ea 2547_001.pdf
1185K
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J M | I Ella Fast <cityclerk@skyvalleyga.com

Srunch Bill referendum with November 2018 General Election
message

irefly <DoNotReply@sos.ga.gov> Tue, Jul 3, 2018 at 5:01 P
o: DoNotReply@sos.ga.gov

A new discussion has been posted in The Buzz by Janine Eveler on 7/3/2018 4:25:59 PM
Several people have asked about the timing of conducting a Brunch Bill (SB17) referendum in November, so | thought | would share

the schedule we came up with. Hopefully this will come out as a table. If not I'll ask Holly to help me post it. You have to run your Call
twice to make it work.

Cobb’s Date Event Notes
July 10, 2018 Resolution approved July 27t is the last day the Resolution can
be

approved for November 2018 election.
Per SB17, the Call can be published no
less than 10 days after the resolution is
approved and...

August 6, 2018 Publish Call ... August 8t is the last day to publish a
Call

before a General Election (21-2-540).
The Call must be published at least 10
days and no more

than 60 days after the resolution is
approved (SB17)

September 7, 2018 Publish Call again You have to publish the Call again because
it must be

published no more than 60 days (Sep 7)
and no less than 30 days (Oct. 7)
before the election (SB17)

October 26, 2018 Publish 15t Notice of Publish the purpose and date of election
Election once a week for 2
weeks immediately prior to election
(SB17)
November 2, 2018 Publish 2nd Notice of
Election
November 6, 2018 Election Day

If you would like to opt out of receiving email notifications for this discussion, click here.



CALL FOR SPECIAL ELECTION
COBB COUNTY

NOTICE is hereby given to voters in Cobb County, Georgia that a Special
Election will be held on TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2018, at which time there will be
submitted to the qualified voters for their determination the following question:

( )YES Shall the governing authority of Cobb County,
Georgia be authorized to permit and regulate Sunday

( )NO sales of distilled spirits, or alcoholic beverages for
beverage purposes by the drink from 11:00 A.M. to 12:30
P.M.?

All persons desiring to vote in favor, or for approval, of the question shall
vote YES. All persons desiring to vote against, or for the rejection, of the question
shall vote NO. If a majority of the persons voting vote in favor of the question, the
question shall be approved, otherwise it shall be rejected and of no force or effect.
All voting precincts will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Residents of Cobb County who are qualified to register to vote, and are
not currently registered, or who need to update their voter registration information,
may do so through the close of business Tuesday, October 9, 2018. Persons may
register to vote online at www.mvp.sos ga.gov or at any of the designated places
for registering Cobb County residents. If you have moved into, out of, or within the
county and have not notified the Cobb Board of Elections and Registration, please
do so no later than October 9, 2018.

Early In-Person Voting will begin Monday, October 15, 2018 and end on
Friday, November 2, 2018. The hours and locations for Early Voting will be available
on www.CobbElections.org.

Voters who wish to vote by Mail may apply by submitting an application to
the Cobb County Elections Office at P.O. Box 649, Marietta, GA 30061, by emailing
an application to Absentee@CobbCounty.org or by faxing an application to (770)
528-2458. Applications are available at www.CobbElections.org. Voted ballots must
be received by 7:00pm, Tuesday, November 6, 2018.

County residents may call (770) 528-2581 for any questions regarding
registration or voting.

This 6" day of August 2018.

Janine Eveler, Director
Cobb County Board of Elections and Registration
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Senate Bill 17
By: Senators Unterman of the 45th, Miller of the 49th, Ginn of the 47th, Mullis of the 53rd,
Beach of the 2 Ist and others

AS PASSED

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED
AN ACT

To amend Title 3 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to alcoholic beverages,
5o as to provide that governing authorities of counties and municipalities may authorize sales
of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises during certain times on Sundays
subject to the passage of a referendum; to provide procedures; to change the time on Sundays
during which farm wineries may sell certain wine for consumption on the premises; to
provide for related matters; to provide an effective date; to repeal conflicting laws; and for

other purposes.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:

SECTION 1.
Title 3 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotaled, relating to alcoholic beverages, is
amended in Code Section 3-3-7, relating to local authorization and regulation ot sales of
alcoholic beverages on Sunday, by revising subsection (j) and adding a new subsection to
read as follows:

"(j)(1) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, on and after the effective date of this

Act, in all counties or municipalities in which the sale of alcoholic beverages is lawful
for consumption on the premises, the governing authority of the county or municipality
may, by resolution or ordinance conditioned on approval in a referendum, authorize the
sale ofalcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises on Sundays from +2:36-Pv:
11:00 A.M. until 12:00 Midnight in any licensed establishment which derives at least 50
percent of its total annual gross sales from the sale of prepared meals or food in all of the
combined retail outlets of the individual establishment where food is served and in any
licensed establishment which derives at least 50 percent of its total annual gross income
from the rental of rooms for overnight lodging.

(2) Any govemning authority desiring to permit and regulate Sunday sales pursuant to this
subsection, but only after a referendum election, shall so provide by proper resolution or

ordinance conditioned on a referendum. Not less than ten nor more than 60 days after the

S.B. 17
o1-
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SB 17/AP

date of approval of such resolution or ordinance, it shall be the duty of the election
superintendent of the county or municipality to issue the call for an election for the
purpose of submitting the question of Sunday sales to the electors of the county or
municipality for approval or rejection. The superintendent shall set the date of the
election for a day not less than 30 nor more than 60 days after the date of the issuance of
the call. The superintendent shall cause the date and purpose of the election to be
published in the official organ of the county once a week for two weeks immediately

preceding the date thereof. The ballot shall have written or printed thereon the words:

') YES Shall the governing authority of (name of municipality or county) be
authorized to permit and regulate Sunday sales of distilled spirits or

() NO alcoholic beverages for beverage purposes by the drink?'

All persons desiring to vote for approval of Sunday sales shall vote 'Yes,' and those
persons desiring to vote for rejection of Sunday sales shall vote 'No.' If more than
one-half of the votes cast on the question arc for approval of Sunday sales, the governing
authority may by appropriate resolution or ordinance permit and regulate Sunday sales
by licensees. Otherwise, such Sunday sales shall not be permitted. The expense of the
clection shall be borne by the county or municipality in which the election is held. Tt
shall be the duty of the superintendent to hold and conduct the election. It shall be his or
her further duty to certify the result thereof to the Secretary of State.

(3) Notwithstanding this subsection or any other provision of law, all county or
municipal resolutions or ordinances enacted prior to April 6, 1984, pursuant to the
authorizations granted by subsections (a) through (i) of this Code section are declared to
be valid and shall remain in full force and effect unless affirmatively repealed by the
governing authority of the county or municipality.

") Nowwithstanding any other provisions of law. all counties or municipalities in

which the governing authority prior to the effective date of this Act has been authorized

pursuant to a referendum Lo permit the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on

the

remises on Sundays from 12:30 P.M. until 12:00 Midnight in anv licensed

establishment which derives at least 50 percent of its total annual gross sales from the

sale ol prepared meals or food in all of the combined retail outlets of the individual

establishment where food is served and in anv licensed establishment which derives at

least 50 percent ol its total annual gross income from the rental of rooms for overnight

lodging may. by resolution or ordinance conditioned on approval in a referendum,

authorize the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises of any such

establishments on Sundays for an additional hour and a half during the time period of
11:00 A.M. until 12:30 P.M.
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subsection shall so provide by proper resolution or ordinance conditioned on approval in

a referendum election. Not less than ten nor more than 60 days after the date ol approval

of such resolution or ordinance, it shall be the duty of the election superintendent of the

county or municipality to issuc the call for an election for the purpose of submitting the

question of Sunday sales to the electors of the county or municipality for approval or

rejection. The superintendent shall set the date of the election for a day not less than 30

nor more than 60 days after the date of the issuance of the call. The superintendent shall

cause the date and purpose of the election to be published in the official organ of the

counly once a week for two weeks immediately preceding the date thercof. The ballot

shall have writlen or printed thereon the words:

'( ) YES Shall the governing authority of (name of municipality or county) be

authorized to permit and regulate Sunday sales of distilled spirits or
alcoholic beverages for beverage purposes by the drink from 11:00
() NO AM. to12:30 P.M.?

All persons desiring to vate for approval of such Sunday sales shall vote 'Yes, and those

persons desiring o vote [or rejection ol such Sunday sales shall vote 'No." If more than

one-hall of the votes cast on the guestion are for approval of such Sunday sales, the

governing authority may by appropriate resolution or ordinance permit and regulate such

Sunday sales by licensees. Otherwise. such Sunday sales shall not be permitted. The

expense of the election shall be borne by the county or municipality in which the election

is held. It shall be the duty of the superintendent to hold and conduct the election. It

shall be his or her further duty to certify the result thereof 1o the Secretary of State.

(3)  Notwithstanding this subsection or any other provision of law, all county or

municipal resolutions or ordinances enacted prior to April 6. 1984, pursuant to the

authorizations granted by subsections (a) through (1) of this Code section are declared to

be valid and shall remain in full force and effect unless affirmatively repealed by the

governing authority of the county or municipality.”

SECTION 2.

Said title is further amended by revising Code Section 3-6-21.2, relating to Sunday sales on

farm wineries, off-site sales, and sales in special entertainment districts, as follows:

"3-6-21.2.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this title to the contrary, in all counties in which
the sale of wine is lawful by a farm winery and in all municipalities in which the sale of
wine is lawful by a farm winery, a farm winery which is licensed to sell its wine in a tasting

room or other licensed farm winery facility within the county or municipality, as the case
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may be, for consumption on the premises or in closed packages for consumption off the
premises shall be authorized to sell its wine and the wine of any other Georgia farm winery
licensee on Sundays from 12:30 P.M. until 12:00 Midnight in the a tasting room or other
licensed farm winery facility, to the same extent as its county or municipal license would

otherwise permit; provided, however, that if such sales of wine on Sundays are lawful at

a time carlier than 12:30 P.M. within the county or municipality in which the licensed

premises ol the Georgia [arm winery is located. the Georgia [arm winery shall be

authorized to sell its wine and the wine of anv other Georgia farm winery licensee

beginning at such ecarlier time. Nothing in this Code section shall be construed so as to
authorize a farm winery to sell wine as provided in this Code section on any other premises
which are not actually located on the property where such farm wine is produced, except
in special entertainment districts designated by the local governing authority of the county

or municipality, as applicable.”

SECTION 3.
This Act shall become effective upon its approval by the Governor or upon its becoming law

without such approval.

SECTION 4.

All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed.
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